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Renovation - exterior portion (following a fire of several years
earlier) really did not have t o make any substantive change in order
to recapture the original which had merely weathered. On the inter-
ior, there are no major changes either to the more basic heavy struc-
ture, although many details have changed. This, of course allows for
noted architect and parishioner Wm. Halsey Wood's east end changés

of 1896 including a fine carved Caen stone altar and reredos.

The stone chancel railing is removed and many minor appointments
including the small pulpit are similarly gone or rearranged. Subsequen
tly, a perforated "decor-block" rood-screen was erected, with the
still accessible Wood sculpture still faintly visible in the background
through it --- ahead of which screen was a very simple altar even
much closer to the congregation. A clergyman of another Episcopal
parish advises the compiler (1971) that this screen has been removed
again after only several years.

Interior - power ful, bold, worshipful;siﬁplicity: columns,
arches, ceiling-roof structure, amd the repetitve deep-set round tre-
foil windows along the nave just below the roof line,

The church is described as "four pointed Gothic" and other Gothic.

The best original description on the House of Prayer is Frank
Wills', in his noted 1850 book: Ancient English Ecclesiastical Archi-
tecture: "Owing to peculiarity of site, &he Tower 1s placed at east
end of Nave, south of Chancel. By this means orientation is preserved,
and the Tower is rendered conspicuous, which could not have been had it
been placed at any distance back from the street, It was impossible
t0o make the Chancel quite as deep as could have been desired, it is
however deep enough to be divided into Choir and Sacrarium and is neasr-
ly one-third the length of Nave. Its dimensions are twenty feet by «°
eighteen feet inthe clear; the Nave and Aisles are sixty-eight feet by
forty-four feet. The Porch is in the first bav of the south Aisle.
The Aisles are separated from Nave by arcades of five bays; the pillars
are alternately circular and octagonal; instead of responds the extreme
arches are supported on semi-octagonal corbels. The Clerestory is per-
forated by quatrefoils within circles. The side windows of Aisles are
couplets; at west end of Aisles are single lancets; at west end of Nave
is a couplet internally, externally a pentiplet, the center and extreme
windows being filled with mason’y, and forming simply an arcade or pan-
elling. The walls, including Tower and Spire, are of stone, The total
height of Spire is about one hundred and twenty feet; the apex of Nave
roof is about forty-three feet. The seats are all open, amd will acco-
3;-te 00 persons. The organ will be at east end of north Aisle. The

¥id against north pier of Chancel Archway in Nave. Against north ang
":lls of Choir or owter Chancel, will be handsomely carved stallsj
¥ will be of stone raised six steps above Nave, and detached
3sy wall., A Credence of stone in the form of a corbel is to be
#njnorth wall., The Froht is adjoining main entrance doorway. A
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| reach has also been pronounced, - in the 19th Century when the Church

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The chief significance of the church itself is architectural, as it
was the product of an internationsl master of the Gothic Revival (early),
and added to by another master who happened to be also a2 parish member.

The church - always referred to asthe House of Prayer, is justly fam-
ous in its own right - as distinguished from its adjoining Rectory - which
is the Plume House, built c¢. 1710: and probably the_oldest building in
America's 3rd. oldest major city. The house (Rectory) aside from its idend
tification with the Revolution was the scene of a variety of scientifié
experiments, notably in the attic-observatory used by Eector - Rev. Hanni-
bal Goodwin, inventor of celluloid photo film which made moves possible;
the historic site should, therefore, include all buildings of the Parish
group, but the processing of voluminous history on the Rectory is being
delayed. Frank Wills, architect, iwas second to none as a master archi-
tect of churches in the U.S. and Canada, in the middle of the early
Gothic Revival. By 1849, he was brought to New Jersey by American Protes-
tantism's foremost hierarchical art patron and moving spirit of the Eccle-
siologicalMovement toward "proper" English Parish Gothic - the Bishop of.
New Jersey, Doane, doing also Christ Church, Newark in the same 1849-50
period. Likely no one other than Frank Wills could have competed on equal
or even superior terms with the greatest architect of the day - Richard
Upjohn,. It was Wills, not Upjohn, who was Official Architect of the
New York Ecclesiological Society - a counterpart of the London Fccles. Soc.
and the spearhesd of most-skilled architects, church professionals and
Protestant hierarchy who were the most influential Gothic Revival force in
America.

On the front, Broad St. facade, which is also for reasons Wills ex-
plains, uniquely the altar or "east end" as well, is carved in stone in
sizable letters (0ld English lettering) just below the "east end" windows
filled-in by Wood's later flush reredos) the relevant inecription "My
house shall be called the house of prayer!. The relevance of Parish outs

pioneered in social outreach work in the nearby (then-01d First Ward)
neighborhood, and again in recent years, when, with its nearby constituency
largely lower income and now ethnically modified, it has reached out
principally to blacks - with socially and artistically elevating programs.
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House of Prayer Church & Rectory
7. Continued - Description

New Jersey: Code 3L

Essex: Code 013

recess formed in north Chancel wall surmonted by a carved canopy, is to be the
Bishop's stall. All the windows are to be filled with painted glass, executed
by Mr. Bolton. All the seats, pulpit, Altar-rails, lectern, etc., are being
executed in black walnut - the open roof of pine. The contract for this
Church, including every thing, is about $13,000,00%

The Rectary (Plume House) is constructed of native sandstone from neigh-
borhood quarries. It has broad and thick panellings, hand hewn beams and
flooring, and deep window. sills characteristic of the domestic architecture
of the period.

Congressional Representation

Honorable Harrison A. Williams - U.S. Senator

Honorable Clifford P. Case - U.S. Senator

Honorable Peter W. Rodino Jr. - Congressman (10th
District)




